
 1 

                                APPROVED 
TOWN OF LOUDON 

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
MINUTES OF JULY 24, 2014 

 
Chairman Dave Powelson called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  
 

 
ROLL CALL 

The following members were present:  Chairman Dave Powelson, Howard Pearl, Roy Merrill, Earl 
Tuson, and alternates George Saunderson and Charlie Aznive.   
Alternate Charlie Aznive was appointed as a voting member in the absence of Ned Lizotte. 
 

 
ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES 

Regular Hearing

 

 – Howard Pearl moved to accept the minutes of June 26, 2014 as written; 
seconded by Earl Tuson.  All were in favor.   

Site Walk

 

 – Earl Tuson made a motion to approve the minutes of June 27, 2014 as printed; 
seconded by Howard Pearl.  All were in favor. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 

Application #Z14-08, Sthua & Colleen Sliva

 

 – Appeal of an Administrative Decision, RR District, Map 
12, Lot 3 on Bee Hole Road.  A letter from the applicants’ attorney asked that the matter be 
rescheduled to the August meeting as she is unable to attend this evening’s meeting.  Roy Merrill 
moved to table the matter until the August 28, 2014 meeting; seconded by George 
Saunderson.  All were in favor. The meeting will be held at 7:00 p.m. in the Community Building; 
there will be no further notification.     

Application #Z14-06, Tina White/Carrie James

 Chairman Powelson stated that a site review was done and the points of the application were 
covered at the last meeting.  He asked if there were any questions from the applicant.  Hearing none, 
he asked if there were any questions from abutters or the public.  Hearing none, he asked if there 
were any questions from the Board.  Roy Merrill made a motion to approve the use of the home 
and yard for dog sitting with a maximum of three guest dogs.  Earl Tuson spoke about a 
question from last month’s meeting with regard to the definition of a kennel.  He referred to State RSA 
Chapter 437 and 466, reading from 437.  He said it would appear that a kennel is not what the 
applicant is asking for.  Dave Powelson said a kennel would be a far larger impact than the 
applicant’s situation.  Mr. Tuson noted that a minor home occupation might be more appropriate, 
saying that this would be normal residential appearances and activities.  Another option would be a 
major home occupation if they want a sign.  He said they are really asking for dog sitting.  Discussion 
continued on how to address the use, not being a kennel, and being similar to child care of up to 
three children which would be a minor home occupation.   Chairman Powelson did not feel that the 
intent of the application could be changed unless the applicant chose to re-apply.  Howard Pearl 
seconded the motion.   A roll vote was taken:  Howard Pearl – yes; Roy Merrill – yes; Dave 
Powelson – yes; Earl Tuson – yes; Charlie Aznive – yes.  Unanimous – PASSED 

 – Special Exception for Dog Sitting/Kennel, RR 
District, Map 12, Lot 14 on Bee Hole Road.  There were no abutters present. 

 



 2 

Application #Z14-09, George & Ann Saunderson

 Mr. Saunderson explained that they live at the end of Lovejoy Road in an 1885 farmhouse.  
They want to take that house down and put up a new house in its place, but set back from the road a 
little more.  He said there is a pond there that was dug in the 1970s; it is not spring fed.  He spoke 
about the way the area is growing in on the pond and about the wetland buffer.  Mr. Saunderson said 
the existing house is about 20’ off the road so they want to move the new house back from the road 
more.  He said Bob Butler and Julie Robinson of the Conservation Commission have visited and are 
in agreement with the request.  He explained that the current house is already slightly in the 75’ 
buffer.  The new house will partially be over the current foundation.  Mr. Saunderson showed the area 
of the proposed house and a new septic system on an aerial photo.  He said he has spoken with both 
of his abutters and they are in agreement with the proposal.   

 – Variance to encroach on wetland buffer, RR 
District, Map 57, Lot 9.  Mr. Saunderson stepped down from the Board to present the application.  
There were no abutters present.     

 Chairman Powelson went through the points of the application with Mr. Saunderson.  The 
chairman asked if there were any questions from the Board.  Mr. Saunderson stated that Mr. Smith, 
an abutter, would put something in writing if the Board wanted him to.  An email from Julie Robinson 
of the Conservation Commission in agreement with the application was read.  The chairman asked if 
a site walk is needed.  It was agreed that there was no need for a site walk.  Howard Pearl made a 
motion to approve the application as submitted; seconded by Roy Merrill.  Mr. Pearl said a 
good explanation was given, he is familiar with the site, and is comfortable with that is on the 
application.   A roll vote was taken:  Charlie Aznive – yes; Earl Tuson – yes; Dave Powelson – 
yes; Roy Merrill – yes; Howard Pearl – yes.  Unanimous – PASSED 
 
George Saunderson returned to the table. 
 
Application #Z14-10, James & Valerie Clairmont/Steve Jackson

Mr. Jackson presented the application.  He explained that they went before the Planning Board 
last week for a lot line adjustment.  He showed a plan of the approved lot line adjustment, noting that 
he and his wife plan to build a new home on the front lot.  Mr. Jackson explained that the driveway to 
the current house would be shared for 88’ and then branch to the left onto the newly expanded lot.  
He explained this location on the plan for clarification.  There will be a driveway maintenance 
agreement with Map 57, Lot 8 as the servient tenant and Map 58, Lot 50 as the dominant tenant.   

 – Special Exception to cross side 
setbacks, RR District, Map 58, Lot 50.  Abutters Sandra MacPherson and William Gordon for Roanne 
Sanborn were present.   

Mr. Gordon, speaking for Ms. Sanborn, said the less driveways coming onto the road, the 
better.  There is already a water issue and they cannot see any negative to the shared driveway.  Ms. 
MacPherson said she would agree; another driveway in that area would be a disaster.  Chairman 
Powelson asked if a site visit was necessary.  Roy Merrill said he did not see any need as it only 
affects Mr. Jackson and the Clairmonts.   

Earl Tuson asked if Mr. Jackson would need two special exception for crossing two setbacks, 
the current driveway/lot and the lot for the new house.  Roy Merrill said Mr. Jackson had stated earlier 
that they have an agreement; it is known that it would be crossing both setbacks and it is in the 
driveway agreement.  Mr. Tuson pointed out that it is technically on Map 58, Lot 50 and Map 57, Lot 8 
as both are being crossed.  Howard Pearl suggested that the application could be amended without 
changing the purpose.  Mr. Jackson was in agreement with the proposed amendment.  Howard Pearl 
moved to amend the application to include Map 57, Lot 8; seconded by Roy Merrill.  All were in 
favor.   

Howard Pearl made a motion to approve the application as amended; seconded by Roy 
Merrill.  A roll vote was taken:  Howard Pearl – yes; Roy Merrill – yes; Dave Powelson - yes; 
Earl Tuson – yes; Charlie Aznive – yes.  Unanimous – PASSED 

 



 3 

Application #Z14-11, Leo Boucher

 Howard Pearl made a motion to continue the hearing to a site walk on July 29, 2014, 
6:00 p.m. at 120 Berry Road and then to the ZBA meeting of August 28, 2014; seconded by 
Earl Tuson.  All were in favor.  Donna will contact Mr. Boucher about attending and if not available, 
giving authorization to Mr. Gordon to speak on his behalf.  There will be no further notification.   

 – Special Exception for reduced front setback, RR District, Map 
58, Lot 62.  The applicant was unable to attend the meeting as he is working out of state.  Neighbor 
Bill Gordon said he could field questions for Mr. Boucher as they have discussed the proposal.  There 
was discussion about going through the application and doing a site visit.  Steve Jackson, as a 
resident of Berry Road, said the Board has had a number of setback requests on Berry Road 
because the lots are limited.  He said Mr. Boucher is proposing to put a garage on the road side of 
the house, away from the pond; he feels it would be appropriate for the location.   

  

 
ADJOURNMENT 

Howard Pearl made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:12 p.m.; seconded by Charlie Aznive.  All 
were in favor. 
 
Submitted by, 
 
 
Donna White 
Administrative Assistant 


